AMENDMENT OF NIAID SOLICITATION
NIAID Centers of Excellence for Influenza Research and Surveillance
	Solicitation Number:
	BAA NIH-NIAID-DMID-07-20

	Amendment Number:
	Two (2)

	Amendment Posting Date(s)
	January 24, 2006, February 24, 2006

	Proposal Intent Response Sheet Due Date:

Proposal Due Date: (UN-CHANGED)
	Monday, February 13, 2006 (UN-CHANGED)
Monday, March 6, 2006 at 4:00 PM Local Time 

	Issued By:
	NIAID, NIH, DHHS
Office of Acquisitions, DEA
6700-B Rockledge Drive

Room 3214, MSC 7612

Bethesda, Maryland 20892-7612

	Point of Contact:
	Carl A. Newman, Contracting Officer

E-Mail: cn109s@nih.gov  

	This amendment is issued to all potential Offerors.
	


The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth below. The hour and date specified for receipt of proposals HAS NOT been extended. Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this and all other amendments, by identifying this amendment number (and any others) and its date on each copy of any offer(s) submitted.  Failure to receive your acknowledgement may result in the rejection of your offer. If, by virtue of this amendment, you wish to change an offer already submitted, such changes may be made by telegram, letter or e-mail, provided each telegram, letter or e-mail makes reference to this solicitation amendment number and date and is received prior to the proposal due date and hour specified. Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the solicitation remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
NOTE THAT THIS AMENDMENT DOES NOT MATERIALLY CHANGE THIS NIAID REQUIREMENT. IT PROVIDES QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY OFFERORS AND RESPONSES PROVIDED BY THE NIAID. ANY FUTURE QUESTIONS THAT THE NIAID RECEIVES AND DEEMS APPROPRIATE TO BE SHARED WITH ALL OFFERORS WILL BE ADDED TO THIS AMENDMENT. IT WILL THEN BE REPOSTED WITH A NEW DATE. THEREFORE, OFFERORS SHOULD PERIODICALLY REFER BACK TO THIS AMENDMENT IN CASE IT IS UPDATED.
Question 1:  The general instructions on page 46 conflict with the specific instructions for the applications [proposals] in Research Area 2, on page 79.   Do we write one 25-page technical section, or a separate 15-page section for each research project?

Answer 1:  See Amendment 1of this Broad Agency Announcement. 
Question 2:  If someone will be named the Program Leader for the project and will also participate in one of the sub-projects, must this person be the named leader on one of the projects?

Answer  2: Identify the Principal Investigator and include this person’s curricula vitae in the technical proposal . The Principal Investigator can participate in sub-projects with the stipulation that this individual’s overall effort does not exceed 100%.
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Question 3: Several of the projects will share common research facilities.  Can the application include a section to support the core facilities? 

Answer 3: The offerors shall propose all resources, including personnel, facilities and other resources, necessary to complete the scope and content of the technical proposal. This includes resources that may be shared by more than one scientific/technical component of the proposal.  

Question 4:  Do you need a letter of intent for this Broad Agency Announcement? 


Answer 4: Yes. See the revised Proposal Intent Response Sheet in Amendment 1 of this Broad Agency 
Announcement. 

Question 5: Will this Broad Agency Announcement review experiments involving humans intentionally infected with influenza viruses. 
 


Answer 5: This effort will not support human influenza challenge studies.


Question 6:  It is unclear under what circumstances Government Employees (such as full time employees of NIH or 
CDC) can participate as collaborators in these studies, and whether intramural laboratories can receive funding for 
equipment and supplies through the Broad Agency Announcement.  We understand that support for personnel would 
not likely be available.


Answer 6: NIH and NIH sister agencies do not have authority to sign for contracts from the federal government and 
hence compete with the private sector for these funds.  NIH can acquire services/research needs, but only if it cannot 
get these from the private sector.   

Question 7: Can we include human sample collection in our proposal with the understanding that we will need 
written approval from the Program Officer to implement the program if we are awarded the contract?
 


Answer 7:  Yes. 


Question 8: Do subcontractors from foreign institutions have to register with the Central Contractor 
Registration (CCR) and complete the Online Representations and Certifications Application  (ORCA)?

Answer 8: Only the potential prime must register with CCR and complete the ORCA registration.  

Question 9: If not, do foreign institution subcontractors that are NOT in the CCR complete Section K for 
Negotiated Acquisitions?

Answer 9: The foreign institution subcontractor which is not registered in the CCR may or may not complete 
Section K dependent on the instructions from the prime contractor. 

Question 10: If foreign subcontractors need to complete Section K for Negotiated Acquisitions, are they required 
to have a DUNS number?  

Answer 10: No.
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Question 11: Centers doing overseas influenza virus surveillance will be expected to bring clinical samples and/or virus isolates from birds back to the U.S. for further study and distribution. One assumes that some of these isolates will be highly pathogenic avian influenza (HPAI) viruses. In order to import live viruses or clinical material obtained from animals outside the U.S., one needs an import permit from USDA/APHIS. Those who work overseas and bring field material back into the U.S. for studies have had considerable experience with USDA/APHIS. The USDA is concerned about the importation of any material originating from sick domestic animals and from birds testing positive for HPAI virus. Most import permits have clauses specifically prohibiting importation of such material. In addition, most USDA/APHIS import permits state that imported materials cannot be used to expose or inoculate domestic animals (including poultry and swine). We are concerned with the hurdles of getting approval to do this work. Please advise.

Answer 11:  Offerors importing highly pathogenic avian influenza viruses (HPAI) into the U.S. must be registered under the Select Agent Program for HPAI as stated in the Additional Technical Requirements of the BAA (page 72).  Registration may be with either the CDC or USDA.  In addition, USDA/APHIS import permits for both low pathogenic and highly pathogenic avian influenza and other influenzas isolated from livestock and poultry are required.  Additional APHIS/USDA permits may be required to import isolates or samples into the U.S. depending on the type of sample and the country of origin.  

Offerors who are already select agent registered for HPAI must obtain USDA/APHIS import permits for both low and high pathogenic influenza viruses within 90 days after contract award. 

Offerors who are not already select agent registered for use of HPAI must have applied for Select Agent Registration or have amended their existing Select Agent Registration prior to award. Because of the lengthy time necessary to obtain this registration, Offerors are hereby notified that they must provide documented evidence in their proposal that this registration process has been initiated. 
 

Failure of a contractor to become select agent registered for HPAI and to have USDA/APHIS import permits in place within 12 months of contract award may result in termination of all HPAI work under the contract and may result in termination of the entire contract.
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